
 1 

                                APPROVED 
TOWN OF LOUDON 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 24, 2014 

 
Chairman Dave Powelson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

 
ROLL CALL 

The following members were present:  Howard Pearl, Roy Merrill, Dave Powelson, Earl Tuson, and 
alternates George Saunderson and Charlie Aznive.   
 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

Regular Hearing

 

 – Howard Pearl made a motion to accept the minutes of October 23, 2014 as 
presented; seconded by Charlie Aznive.  All were in favor.  

Site Walk

 

 – Earl Tuson moved to approve the minutes of the site walk at Inisfree Investments 
as written; seconded by Roy Merrill.  All were in favor.  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Application #14-14, Inisfree Investments, LLC

 Chairman Powelson reviewed what was covered at the last meeting.  The application is for 
bulk fuel storage; part of the discussion was that this is intended to be a distribution center.  He said 
he is not sure the Board can approve fuel storage if the distribution use is not in place. Mr. Green said 
he cannot go for the distribution use if he doesn’t have an approval for the tanks.  He said he is 
looking for approval for over-sized storage, even if it would be contingent on the site plan that is 
before the Planning Board.  Mr. Green stated that the fuel would be for onsite use and distribution to 
retail customers.  The chairman said he was not sure that he saw how the approvals have to be in 
that order.  Mr. Green asked if over-sized tanks would be allowed if distribution was removed.  Charlie 
Aznive said it would seem different if for the gravel operation only.  Mr. Green said either would 
require a site plan.  Mr. Powelson said he is a little reluctant to approve tanks intended for distribution 
when the use is not approved for the lot.  He said applying for a variance for the use is an option, 
explaining that a variance is not always easy to get.  He said the applicant could also seek out 
another site in the C/I District for a distribution center where it would be more fitting with zoning.  Mr. 
Powelson pointed out that there is a provision in the Zoning Ordinance to change from one non-
conforming use to another if no additional structures are involved.   

 – Special Exception for bulk storage tanks, RR District, 
Map 11, Lot 12.   Abutter Ed Dempsey and Selectman Steve Ives, for the Town as an abutter, were 
present.  Jeff Green represented the applicants.   

 Roy Merrill asked Mr. Green if he got an answer from the applicant about their fuel use.  Mr. 
Green said he was not able to make the connection with his applicant since the Planning Board 
meeting last week.  He said he was given a figure of 2,000 gallons a week in earlier meetings with the 
applicant.  He explained that they want to be able to buy bigger loads at better rates.  Mr. Powelson 
said the proposed gallonage would be six months’ worth.  Mr. Green said the applicant currently has 
one 500 gallon tank for off-road fuel on the site.  Mr. Merrill spoke about getting a tanker of 10,000 
gallons; he said 20,000 gallons of storage would be more than adequate for what they need.  George 
Saunderson said he understands that Bob Cole, who ran Concord Sand & Gravel, had a 1,000 gallon 
tank and that did fine with his equipment.  Dave Powelson said that seems closer to what he would 
think is appropriate.  Mr. Merrill said buying by the tanker is how to get the price.  He said it would be 
understandable that one 15,000 gallon tank would seem adequate for what they are using and they 



 2 

could still get a better price.  Mr. Green said if anything is going to be changed with the quantity they 
would need to have at least two tanks for the different types of fuel.   
 Jeff Green said the applicants are currently not storing on-road fuel so they want to get fuel 
storage onsite.  He said he knows that 51,000 gallons of fuel sounds like a lot but even for onsite use 
it would be cheaper because they are now paying delivery fees and are trying to get it wholesale.  
Dave Powelson stated that he’s not particularly familiar with the site but in talking with Earl Tuson on 
the way to the meeting he seemed to think the intent is to operate as a gravel pit for 10-20 years or 
more.  Mr. Green said when the new owner came to the boards a couple of years ago their intent was 
to operate as a gravel pit operation.  They merged some properties together, changing the use of the 
second property to be included in the operation.  He pointed out some areas that have been used and 
others that have not yet been used.  The life of the operation depends on how material sells.  Mr. 
Green said they could still bring material in for processing even after the onsite material has been 
used.  He said the long-term goal is at least ten years. 
 Chairman Powelson said it does not appear they are looking to change the use from an active 
gravel operation to a distribution center.  Mr. Green explained they are trying to lease with a guy who 
can buy more volume.  The chairman noted that it was stated at the last meeting that heating fuel was 
also proposed.  Mr. Green said that is where the distribution comes in.  Howard Pearl said the 
distribution part is the whole issue.  He said he is not sure anyone has an issue with them running a 
business and bulk storage for their own use.  Mr. Pearl said he would suggest looking at the 
application and figure out how to approach the proposed use.  Mr. Green said they ultimately want 
onsite storage.  He said he believes they have been talking with a company about doing that.  The 
company needed a place for distribution so they discussed dropping in some tanks and buying in 
bulk.  He said there is one delivery truck coming there every day anyway so traffic would not change. 
Mr. Pearl asked if on-road or off-road is the majority of the business.  Mr. Green said it is off-road 
mostly but they have to have at least two tanks for the two types of fuel.  He said if the distribution 
use was eliminated at this time he would want at least one 15,000 and one 6,000 tank.  They would 
then come back for the use and the rest of the tanks/storage.  Roy Merrill said those numbers make 
sense for onsite use so they can buy by the tanker.  Earl Tuson noted that 21,000 gallons would go 
ten weeks. 
 Chairman Powelson asked if there were any abutters wishing to speak in favor of the 
application.  Hearing none, he asked if there were any abutters wishing to speak against the 
application.  Ed Dempsey said he lives right where these tanks are being proposed, and he is worried 
about the location compared to his house.  He said the tanks are big and will be quite visible.  He 
pointed out that there are two houses on his lot and the one closest to the back line is not shown on 
the plan.  Roy Merrill asked Mr. Green if there is an option to move the location of the tanks, saying 
that another 50’-100’ wouldn’t seem to be an issue.  Earl Tuson said 250’ from the property line isn’t 
unreasonable.  Mr. Green said he has been discussing this with the applicant but the problem is 
running the power.  Right now it would run down the edge of the access road.   
 Selectman Ives said he has great concern about the amount of fuel onsite.  He asked what 
Fillmore or Concord Sand & Gravel might have for storage, adding that he still does not see the 
justification for the quantity requested.  He also asked how a decision could be made if the 
information on the plan is not accurate.  Mr. Dempsey said he is worried about his property values, 
noting that he would see the tanks from his house.  Charlie Aznive said the application as written has 
distribution on it. Roy Merrill stated that this would be no different from the Beanstalk with their fuel 
tanks.  Steve Ives noted that is in the C/I District.   
 Jeff Green said that Mr. Dempsey mentioned at an earlier meeting that he was told the old 
road was not going to be used by the current owners.  Mr. Green pointed out the main road coming in 
to the area, showing an area for parking of fuel trucks and employee vehicles.  He said he could 
make that area for the tanks and put the parking closer to the abutting property line.  That would 
move the tanks a little further away from the abutter’s home.  Roy Merrill said the power could be 
done to that area, getting the tanks away from the abutter’s property.  Mr. Green said they have 



 3 

proposed a berm.  Mr. Dempsey was previously told that before but it was verbal; being on the plan, it 
will happen.  Mr. Green said they would use the existing road instead of the abandoned section and 
the site would drop down about 3’ in elevation.  The chairman asked Mr. Dempsey if that change 
would address his concerns.  Mr. Dempsey said it would to a degree but he is still concerned that he 
only has one acre and would prefer that the facility not be right there.   

Steve Ives stated that he still thinks it is a lot of fuel.  Charlie Aznive said he agreed with Mr. 
Ives, particularly when talking about the use for the business right there.  Mr. Ives said the boards 
have to protect the town and its environment.  Dave Powelson said there are ways to protect the 
environment.  Mr. Ives said it is up to the ZBA to tell the applicant what is reasonable.  Mr. Green 
stated that the state said the tanks can be 75’ from a wetland.  He explained that the tank, alarm 
system, and containment system would all have to fail for there to be a problem.  George Saunderson 
said he feels 6,000 gallons would be sufficient for the business’s use, not a distribution center which 
is not allowed there.  The chairman said the Board might be more comfortable if they knew the exact 
location on the tanks.  Mr. Green said he could go back to the owner for discussion of the location 
and sizes.  He said they would want at least the 15,000 gallon tank and one 6,000 gallon tank.  He 
said he would also pass along the Board’s recommendations and address the abutter’s concerns with 
the applicants, then come back next month.  Earl Tuson made a motion to continue application 
#Z14-14 to the December 29th meeting, 7:00 p.m. in the Community Building; seconded by 
Howard Pearl.  All were in favor.  There will be no further notification. 
 
Application #Z14-15, Pieter & Patricia Catlow

 Mr. Seraikas explained that this is a 22.8 acre lot on Old Shaker Road where the applicant 
plans to build a single-family house.  He said the lot has a wetland across the front, parallel to the 
road, about 50’ in from the road.  He said the crossing is needed for the driveway to access the 
plateau further back on the lot, approximately 485’ from the road.  Mr. Seraikas said there are two 
other pockets of wet but they are not subject to the buffer due to their size.  He said the driveway is 
proposed to cross at the narrowest point for the least impact.  He stated that he went to the 
Conservation Commission last February; they then did a site walk.  He said Julie Robinson called him 
at that time and said they were ok with the plan.  Mr. Seraikas said he has nothing in writing and he 
was unable to reach Mrs. Robinson earlier today.  The chairman said he wasn’t sure the Board could 
do much without the opinion of the Conservation Commission.  George Saunderson informed the 
Board that Rob Buzzell and Pauline Touzin of the Conservation Commission were at the Planning 
Board meeting when this application was discussed.  He said they are onboard with the proposal. 
Roy Merrill said the Board cannot deny owners the use of their property.   

 – Special Exception for Wetland Crossing in the RR 
District, Map 47, Lot 13.  Abutters Linda and Alan Tisdale were present.  Wetland scientist Mike 
Seraikas represented the applicants.   

 Chairman Powelson went through the points of the application with Mr. Seraikas.  He asked if 
there were any questions from the Board.  Roy Merrill and Howard Pearl stated that the request 
seems pretty straightforward.  The chairman asked if abutters had questions.  Mr. Tisdale said their 
concern was of any water flow forced onto their land because of the crossing.  Mr. Seraikas said the 
culvert would be properly sized and the water would run through wetland to wetland so there would 
not be any impact on abutting properties.  Stan Prescott said his wife is an abutter and was not 
properly notified; therefore he feels the hearing should be continued.  Chairman Powelson said it is a 
peculiar dilemma when someone is not notified yet are at the hearing.  Mr. Prescott said that does not 
matter as she was not properly notified and the law says all abutters must be notified.  He said he 
knew of the application as a Planning Board member.  It was determined that Map 47, Lot 9 was 
notified instead of Map 56, Lot 9.  Earl Tuson made a motion to continue Z14-15 to the December 
29th meeting, 7:00 p.m. in the Community Building.  Roy Merrill seconded the motion.  All were 
in favor.  Mr. Seraikas will get the additional notification fee to the office. 
 



 4 

Application #Z14-16, Chester Gay

 Mr. Green explained that this property is at the corner of Bee Hole and Wiggins Roads.  It is a 
6.5 acre lot in the RR District.  The special exception for reduced setback is to put an addition on an 
existing barn.  The addition is a lean-to for two cars and has actually already been built.  Mr. Green 
showed that this is a corner lot which requires 50’ setbacks on both frontages.  The structure is 94’ +/- 
from Bee Hole Road but right on the edge of Wiggins Road.  One corner of the barn is 1’ off the road, 
the other is about 2’.  He explained that this portion of Wiggins Road currently serves as a shared 
driveway for Lot 24 and Lot 24-1.  There is an agreement from a 2011 subdivision that requires the 
barn to be moved if Wiggins Road is developed.  Mr. Green stated that the agreement would apply to 
this lean-to as well.  It was confirmed that the addition is no closer to the road than the existing barn. 

 – Special Exception for reduced setback in the RR District, Map 
21, Lot 24-1.  There were no abutters present.  Jeff Green represented the applicant.  Chairman 
Powelson appointed George Saunderson as a voting member in the absence of Ned Lizotte. 

 Chairman Powelson went through the points of the application with Mr. Green.  He then asked 
if there were any questions from the Board.  There were no abutters present and no questions from 
those in attendance.  Roy Merrill made a motion to approve the reduction of the setback to 1’ off 
Wiggins Road with the condition that the barn would be moved if Wiggins Road is developed; 
seconded by Howard Pearl.  Dave Powelson said the setbacks in that immediate area are nominal.  
He added that it is always awkward approving something after the fact.  A roll vote was taken:  
George Saunderson – yes; Howard Pearl – yes; Roy Merrill – yes; Dave Powelson – yes; Earl 
Tuson – yes.  Unanimous - APPROVED 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

Howard Pearl made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:23 p.m.; seconded by George Saunderson.  
All were in favor. 
 
Submitted by, 
 
 
Donna White 
Administrative Assistant 


